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ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 

This Addendum No. 1 forms a part of the Invitation to Bid and modifies the original solicitation 

package as noted below and is issued to incorporate the following: 

 

1. The Bid due date has been extended to Wednesday, April 22, 2015; 

2. Responses to twenty-two (22) questions attached hereto as Attachment No. 1; 

3. Form 8; Required Submittal Checklist is hereby removed and replaced with a 

revised Form 8 dated 4/9/15 attached hereto as Attachment No. 2; 

4. An example of a Joint Venture Agreement is attached hereto as Attachment No. 

3; and 

5. Instructions to Bidders, Item 14; Statement of Bidders Qualifications is revised 

to read: 

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS, EXHIBIT G 

(REQUIRED SUBMITTAL) – The statement of Bidder's Qualifications 

must be filled out completely. 

The City shall have the right to require such additional information, as it 

deems necessary to evaluate the ability of the Bidder to successfully 

perform the Work. 

The City reserves the right to reject any Bidder who does not satisfy the 

City as to his ability to successfully perform the Work, previous pre-

qualification notwithstanding. 

The cause for rejection shall include: 

a. Non-compliance of the Bidder with the requirements of an equal 

employment opportunity in contracting program as may be 

prescribed by ordinance; 

b. Non-compliance by the Bidder with the requirements of a minority 

and female business enterprise participation program as may be 

prescribed; 

c. Inadequate quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or 

services to the particular use required; or 

d. Unacceptable number and scope of conditions attached to the Bid by 

the Bidder, if any.  

 

The Bid due date HAS been modified and Bids are due on  Wednesday, April 22, 2015 and 

should be time stamped in no later than 2:00 P.M. EDT and delivered to the address listed 

below: 

 

Adam L. Smith, Esq., CPPO, CPPB, CPPM, CPP 

Chief Procurement Officer 

Department of Procurement 

55 Trinity Avenue, S. W.  

City Hall South, Suite 1900 

Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

 

**All other pertinent information is to remain unchanged** 
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Acknowledgment of Addendum No. 1 

 

Bidders must sign below and return this form with Bid response to the Department of 

Procurement. 

 

Bidders must sign below and return this form with Bid to the Department of Procurement, 55 

Trinity Avenue S.W., City Hall South, Suite 1900, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 as acknowledgment 

of receipt of this Addendum.  

 

This is to acknowledge receipt of FC-7909, Annual Contract for the Maintenance and Repair 

of Sidewalks, Curbs, Driveway Aprons & Associated Infrastructure on this the ______ day 

of ____________, 20__. 

 

 

 

             

       Legal Company Name of Bidder 

 

              

       Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

              

       Printed Name 

 

              

       Title 

 

              

       Date 



Attachment No. 1 
 

Questions and Answers



Questions 1: There is no line item in the solicitation document for Public Outreach or Public 

Information Officer (PIO). Will a subcontractor opportunity for a PIO be added 

to the Bid Form for inclusion in the contract?  

Answer: A PIO would be a great member to add to your management team, and it 

is highly recommended that one be included but it will not be added to the 

bid form. If the Contractor plans to include a PIO as a team member, the 

PIO fees should be built into the overall bid price. 

 

Questions 2: Since there is not any Drawings which show where the proposed items of work 

will be constructed; how is utility locating (potholing), relocating of utilities for 

conflict, or adjusting utilities to be handled? Will this be paid out of the cash 

Allowance?  Will a Change Order be issued?   

Answer: Task/work orders will denote location and project limits of any work 

authorized. Utility locates will be handle via a call to Georgia 811.  

Repair of existing infrastructure should not require relocation of any 

utilities, and utility adjustments will be paid per the contract bid price. 

  

Questions 3: Who is responsible if contaminated or hazardous material is encountered?  Does 

the City have a “hazardous material contractor” to handle these issues when 

encountered?  Will the City be the Generator of Record for any contaminated 

and/or hazardous material disposal?   

Answer: Repair of existing public infrastructure should not entail removal of 

hazardous material. 

 

Questions 4: It appears that the Agreement does not have a “differing site condition clause”? 

Can one be added to the document?   

Answer: A “differing site conditions clause” is not needed for the work 

contemplated under this contract. 

 

Questions 5: In regarding to demolition of the sidewalk, driveway or apron; will be limits per 

linear foot to demolish during the project?  

Answer: The project limits will be noted in the task/work order authorizations. 

 

Questions 6: Bid items 11a and 11b are these straight granite curbs only? What about radius 

curb?  Prices are not the same.   

Answer: Yes, 11a and 11b are for straight granite curbs. 

 

Questions 7: Bid item 11a, 11b, and 12: The specification only addresses the 3000 p.s.i 

concrete at the joints. How will the concrete at front (Pavement Widening) be 

paid for?  Can the City provide a digital sample via e-mail or FTP download (1 



each per Light, Medium, Heavy Density map) of the Improvement Plats and Lot 

Boundary Maps previously scanned by the City? 

Answer: These items refer to granite curbing. A concrete saddle at the joint is all 

that is required. Restoration of the pavement should be per the City of 

Atlanta Street Detail.   

 

Questions 8: How will roadway saw cut be paid, for items 10, 11a, 11b and 12 and other bid 

items requiring saw cut? Is the use of non-domestic (Off Shore) production 

support prohibited? 

Answer: Where it is necessary to remove asphalt pavement and roadway base to 

install the curb, this demolition and removal shall be considered as 

included in the bid price for installation. 

 

Questions 9: Bid item #1-Traffic Control: The new COA ordinance requires the use of 

uniform police officer at all signaled intersections.  Could you provide a line 

item for traffic control at signaled intersection or advice on how pricing for this 

condition line item #1 is being priced per site? Do existing parcel/lot lines 

(straight Lines) that are not 2 point lines (start-to-end) need to have extra vertices 

removed? 

Answer: Traffic control shall be paid as a lump sum per site.  All costs associated 

with signage, channelization devices, safety measures, coordination, and 

personnel shall be included in this lump sum unit price per site, including 

cost for uniformed police officers at all signalized intersections. 

 

Questions 10: Item #37 Mobilization:  According to the specification for this item, no payment 

will be made for mobilization if the value of all projects within 1000 feet radius 

exceeds 200LF. It is not possible to estimate the total dollar value for group 

projects within 1000 feet radius. Would you consider establishing a dollar value 

as threshold rather than unit quantity of sidewalk? 

Answer: This item provides for mobilization compensation for small projects only.   

Work will consist of all preparations and operations necessary to perform 

sidewalk, driveway and/or curb work, including, but not limited to, those 

necessary for the movement of personnel, equipment, supplies and 

incidentals to the project site. A mobilization charge will be allowed under 

this item only if that project qualifies by meeting the following criteria: 

• Project must have written approval by the city engineer to receive 

this mobilization fee. 

• Only one mobilization payment will be made for each project that 

qualifies herein as stipulated. 

 



• Groups of at least three or more individual projects located within a 

1000-feet radius of each other as determined from a map book (the 

scale must be less than or equal to 1” = 2000’) will qualify for only 

one mobilization payment for that group of projects.  However, 

should the value of the projects within 1,000 foot radius exceed the 

allowance of 200LF of sidewalk, mobilization shall not be paid. 

 

Questions 11: Can the M/FBE Joint Venture Partner be considered if their application is in 

process with the Office of Contract Compliance at the moment of the bid date?  

Answer: No, each JV team must consist of at least one certified Minority/Female 

Business Enterprise (M/FBE) partner. A firm that is pending certification 

at the bid deadline does not meet this requirement.   

 

Questions 12: The requirement is to submit the Joint Venture (JV) Agreement fourteen days in 

advance. This is not customary in the industry and this will limit the flexibility to 

make last minute changes or adjustments. Can the JV agreement be submitted at 

the time of the bid? 

Answer: Yes. It is not a requirement to submit the JV agreement fourteen (14) days 

prior to the bid due date. As a service to the bidding community, the Office 

of Contract Compliance will review a teams’ JV agreement for 

compliance if they submit the agreement to OCC at least fourteen (14) 

days prior to the bid due date. Any JV team who is not interested in taking 

advantage of this courtesy review may submit their JV agreement along 

with other bid submittals at the bid due date.  

 

Questions 13: Will the Minority Joint Venture Partner self-performed work count towards the 

EBO goals? 

Answer: Yes, a certified M/FBE Joint Venture Partner can be credited with M/FBE 

participation towards the goal when it self-performs work on the project. 

The percentage of M/FBE participation credit will be based on the 

percentage of work self-performed.   

   

Questions 14: If the Majority Joint venture partner is a certified M/FBE, can the Minority Joint 

Venture partner be non-certified M/FBE or a large Company? 

Answer: Yes. However, the certified M/FBE JV partner would be prohibited from 

receiving self-performing subcontractor participation credit because they 

are the lead JV firm. This means the JV team would have to include at 

least two certified M/FBE subcontractors (one AABE to self-perform 

17.5% and one FBE to self-perform 13%) to be in compliance with the 

Equal Business Opportunity (EBO) program goals. 

 



Questions 15: Will a joint venture or a teaming agreement that has a member of the teaming 

agreement or joint venture satisfy the Utility License requirement? 

Answer: Teaming agreements do not satisfy the Joint Venture provision. 

Proponents who submit a teaming agreement in lieu of a joint venture 

agreement run the risk of being deemed non-responsive. Additionally, the 

solicitation document explains the guidelines necessary for the Utility 

License requirement.   

 

Questions 16: In the Agreement, Section 3.2, states that if the quantities in the Agreement 

Documents are materially changed to cause inequity to the City, the applicable 

unit prices shall be equitably adjusted per Article 8.  A material change is an 

increase in quantity of forty percent or more.   In Section 8.2 -Changes and 

Claims states “the unit prices set forth in Exhibit A-1 shall not be subject to 

modification pursuant to this Article”.  Please explain if unit prices will be 

adjusted for Owner’s benefit?  Will Contractor receive equitable adjustment for 

quantities that underrun by forty percent or more? 

Answer: No, the unit pricing will not be adjusted for quantities underrun or 

quantities exceed. 

 

Questions 17: In the Agreement, Section 4.1.2, “payment to Contractor will be made  less 

applicable retention within (30) days”.  What is the amount of retainage to be 

withheld? 

Answer: Article 4; Payment Terms, is revised to include: Section 4.5 The City shall 

retain ten percent (10%) of the gross amount of each monthly payment or 

ten percent (10%) of the portion thereof approved for payment, whichever 

is less; such sum shall be accumulated and not be released to Contractor 

until final payment is due. Retainage shall not bear interest. 

 

Questions 18: There are no plans or what I need to do to receive the plans if there are any for 

this project. 

Answer: Locations will be determined at a later date and assigned by task order.  

Repair of existing infrastructure per the City of Atlanta’s Details an 

Specifications which can be found on the City‘s website under the Public 

the Department of Public Works. 

 

 

 

 



Questions 19: In the Instructions to Bidders, Number 14 – Statement of Bidders Qualification 

(Required Submittal). Is there a City form that the Bidders must fill out?  We 

cannot find the “form” in the ITB, please provide the requested form if 

required.  Also, we do not see this Statement of Bidders Qualifications in the” 

Required Submittal Checklist (Form 9)? Is this form required? 

Answer: Exhibits G.1, G.2, G.3 and G.4 make up the Statement of Bidder’s 

Qualifications.   

 

Questions 20: In Part 1-Section 2 Required Submittals, Required Submittals Form 8- Required 

Submittal Checklist:  Actual Checklist is reference as (Form 9)?  The checklists 

list the Required Checklist as Form 8. Which is correct?  

Answer: The Checklist is part of form 8. See Attachment No. 2. 

 

Questions 21: How many contractors will be selected for this contract? 

Answer: The City anticipates awarding four (4) to five (5) contracts. However the 

City reserves the right to award to more or less than the anticipated 

amount. 

 

Questions 22: Can the City Provide an example of a Joint Venture Agreement?  

Answer: Yes, attached hereto as Attachment No. 3. However, please note this is 

purely an example and should not be used as anything more. To ensure 

that your JV Agreement meets the requirements set forth by the City of 

Atlanta’s Code of Ordinances, see section 2-1369.  

 



Attachment No. 2 
 

Revised Form 8; 

 Required Submittal Checklist 



Required Submittal (FORM 8 ) 
4/9/15 

Required Submittal Checklist 
 

The following submittals shall be completed and submitted with each Bid see table below “Required Bid Submittal Check 
Sheet.”  Please verify that these submittals are in the envelope before it is sealed.   Disclaimer:  It is each Bidders sole 

responsibility to ensure that their Bid to the City is inclusive of all required submittal documents outlined on the below- 

referenced checklist; as well as within other parts of the solicitation document. 
 

Submit one (1) Original Bid, signed and dated, and seven (7) complete copies of the Original Bid including all required 

attachments. 

 
In addition to the hard copy submissions, each Bidder shall submit two (2) digital versions of its Bid Submission in Adobe 

Portable Document Format (“PDF”) on compact disk (CDs). CD One (1) version should be a duplicate of the hard copy of the 

Bid with no deviations in order or layout of the hard copy Bid. CD Two (2) version should be a redacted version of the hard 

copy Bid Submission. Please refer to the Georgia Open Records Acts (O.C.G.A. § 50-18-72) for information not subject to 

public disclosure. 

 
The City assumes no liability for differences in information contained in the Bidder’s printed Bid Submission and that 

contained on the CDs. In the event of a discrepancy, the City will rely upon the information contained in the Bidder’s printed 

material (Hard Copy). Each CD should be labeled with the Project Number, Project Name, and the CD Number. 



Required Submittal (FORM 8 ) 
4/9/15 

 

Item 
Number 

Required Bid Submittal Check 
Check Sheet (√) 

 1 Part I – Instruction to Bidders (Bid Guarantee Included) ( )  

 2 Appendix A - Office of Contract Compliance (Required Submittals 
Included) 

( ) 

  

3 Part I, Section 2 – All Required Submittal Forms (if any of the      (   ) 

required submittal documents are not submitted or incomplete 

within your Bid submittal package, your firm may be deemed 
non-responsive).  Required Submittals include but are not limited to: 

฀ Form 1; Illegal Immigration Reform and Enforcement Act Forms 

฀ Form 2; Contractor Disclosure Form 

฀ Form 3; Bid Bond 

฀ Form 4.1; Certification of Insurance Ability  

฀ Form 4.2; Certification of Bonding Ability 

฀ Form 5; Acknowledgment of Addenda 

฀ Form 6; Proponent Contact Directory 

฀ Form 7; Reference List 

฀ Form 8; Required Submittal Checklist 

฀ Authority to Transact Business in the State of Georgia 

฀ Exhibit G.1 – Experience Statement 

฀ Exhibit G.2 – Lower Tier Experience Statement 

฀ Exhibit G.3 – Work in Progress  

฀ Exhibit G.4 – Safety and Health History Form       

4 Bidder’s Official Company Name: 

Company Physical Address: 

5 President/Vice President/Owner Name:                         ______________    

Title:                                                                                           

Office Telephone Number:                                                       

Direct Cell Telephone Number:                                               

Email Address:                                                                           

6 Primary Point-of-Contact Concerning ITB:                        ____________   

Title:                                                                                             

Office Telephone Number:                                                         

Direct Cell Telephone Number:                                                 

Email Address:                                                                           

 

  



Attachment No. 3 
 

EXAMPLE  

Joint Venture Agreement   
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